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BEFORE THE ADDITIONAL REGISTRAR, ENQUIRIES-11
KARNATAKA LOKAYUKTA, BENGALURU
ENQUIRY NUMBER: UPLOK-2/DE/111/2016
ENQUIRY REPORT Dated: 08/06 /2020

Enquiry Officer: V.G.Bopaiah
Additional Registrar Enquiries-11
Karnataka Lokayukta, Bengaluru.
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Delinquent Official Number: Sri. A,M. Shankar

Discharged Duties as Assistant
Executive Engineer (Electrical)
Chamundeshwari Electric Supply
Company Limited  (CESC),
Yalanduru Sub-Division,
Yalanduru, Chamarajanagara
District in the year 2014.

Due for retirement on
superannuation on 30/11/2028,
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1. Background for initiating the present inquiry against the

delinquent official needs to be set out in brief. One Sri R.
Krishna (hereinafter will be referred te as “complainant”) ,
resident of Yalanduru town, Chamaréjanagara District is
electrical contractor. According to complainant, about one and )
half months earlier to 06/12/2014 Smt. Devajamma, Sri
Revanna, Sri. Shivaiah and Sri. Hanumantha had filed
application in the office of delinquent official for e¢lectrification
of their respective house. Devajamma, Revanna and Shivaiah
approached the complainant to get the work done.  Thereafter,
the complainant took Devajamma, Revanna and Shivaiah to
Sri. Jagadeesh who then was working as Assistant Engineer

attached to the office of the delinquent official. Afterwards, the
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complainant prepared estimate and after obtaining sanction
approached the delinquent official and requested for
electrification of the house of Devajamma, Revanna, Shivaiah
and Hanumantha. According to the complainant the delinquent
official insisted for payment of illegal gratification of Rs.100/-
each and received a sum of Rs.400/- and afterwards issued
work order and labour award. - Afterwards, the complainant
approached the delinquent official for indent. At that time,
according to the complainant, the delinquent official demanded
illegal gratification of Rs.400/- i.e., rupees one hundred each
per indent for release of the items required for electrification.
On 03/12/2014, according to the complainant, when he again
approached the delinquent official and requested to do the

needful the delinquent official reiterated the demand.

. The complainant was not willing to fulfil the said demand and

therefore approached the Police Inspector (hereinafter will be
referred to as “Investigating Officer”) attached to Lokayukta
Police Station, Chamarajanagara on 06/12/2014 at 10.30 A.M
and lodged complaint against the delinquent official and placed
copies of some documents and placed the memory card
containing the conversation between him and the delinquent
official. On the basis of the said complaint the Investigating
Officer registered case against the delinquent official in crime
number 11/2014 of Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara
for the offence punishable under section 7 of The Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1988. Thereafter, the Investigating Officer
secured the shadow witness by name C.Swamy and panch
witness by name M.V. Radhakrishna to Lokayukta Police
Station, Chamarajanagara and informed them the purpose for

which they are secured. The complainant placed four currency .
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notes of denomination of Rs. 100/- each before the Investigating
Officer.  The Investigating Officer got entered the numbers of
the above notes on a sheet of paper through the panch witness.
The Investigating Officer got applied phenolphthalein powder on
the above notes through his staff. The Investigating Officer got
prepared solution with water and sodium carbonate powder and
obtained sample of the said solution in a bottle, On the
instructions of the Investigating Officer shadow witness placed
the tainted notes in the left side pocket of the shirt of the
complainant and immersed fingers of hands in the residual
solution. The said finger wash of shadow witness turned to pink

colour.  The Investigating Officer seized the said wash in a

- bottle. The Investigating Officer handed over a voice recorder to
- the complainant with instructions to keep the same live at the
- time of approaching the delinquent official. The Investigating

« Officer instructed the complainant to approach the delinquent

official and to give the tainted cash to the delinquent official
only in case of demand by the delinquent official. The
Investigating Officer also instructed the complainant to wipe
the head with right palm in case of acceptance of tainted cash
by the delinquent official. The Investigating Officer instructed
the shadow witness to accompany the complainant and to
observe as to what transpires between the complainant and
dé}jnquent official. With the said process the Investigating
Officer conducted pre-trap mahazar as primitive step of

investigation.

. Subsequent to the pre-trap mahazar, the Investigating Officer

along with his staff by mname Puttaswamy Aradhya,
Basavarajaswamy, Jayaram, M.Mahalingaswamy, H.N.
Kumararadhya, K.R. Maheshakumar, N. Suresh, N. Shivakumar,
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Deputy Superintendent of Police by name T. Nataraju, Police
Inspector by name Gopikrishna, complainant, shadow witness
and panch witness lecft Lokayukta Police  Station,
Chamarajanagara at 12.45 P.M and reached near the office of
delinquent official at Yalanduru étt 1.30 P.M. The complainant
along with the shadow witness went to the office of delinquent
official and came to know that delinquent official had left the
office to attend the meeting at Taluk Panchayath office. At
about 4.05 P.M the delinquent official returned to his office.
Thereafter, the complainant along with the shadow witness
entered the chamber of the delinquent official ~ at 4.10 P.M.
The complainant wished the delinquent official and placed the

indents. The delinquent official received the indents and

demanded cash by way of signal with right hand fingers. In
response, the complainant  forwarded the tainted cash. The
delinquent official accepted the tainted cash with right hand and
after counting with both ‘hands placed the same in left side
pocket of shirt and returned the indents. It was then 04.20 P.M.
The complainant came out of the chamber of the delinquent
official and communicated by wiping the head with right palm.
Immediately thereafter, the Investigating Officer along with his
staff and panch witness entered the chamber of the delinquent
official where the complainant pointed out the delinquent official
and told that the delinquent official received the tainted cash.
On the instructions of the Investigating Officer, his staff held the
fore arms of delinquent official. The Investigating Officer
caused arrest of the delinquent official. On being questioned by
the Investigating Officer, the complainant and shadow witness

narrated the events which occurred in the chamber of the

delinquent official. The Investigating Officer got prepared
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solution with water and sodium carbonate powder in four
plastic tumblers and obtained sample of the same in a bottle.
On the instructions of the Investigating Officer the delinquent
official immersed fingers of right hand in the residual solution
placed in a plastic tumbler and immersed fingers of left hand in
the residual solution placed in another plastic tumbler. Finger
wash of both hands of the delinquent official turned to light pink
colour. The Investigating Officer seized the said wash in the
separate bottles. On being questioned by the Investigating
Officer about tainted cash, delinquent official placed the tainted
cash after lifting the same from the left side pocket of his shirt.
The Investigating Officer seized the said tainted cash. The

Investigating Officer conducted personal search of the delinquent

official and found cash of Rs.2,360/-. The delinquent official

. responded that the said cash is personal cash and therefore the

¢ Investigating Officer returned the said cash of Rs.2,360/- to the

delinquent official. The Investigating Officer provided alternate
shirt to the delinquent official and after getting removed the
shirt of the delinquent official got immersed the left side pocket
of the shirt in the residual solution placed in one of the
remaining tumblers. The said wash turned to light pink colour.
The Investigating Officer seized the said wash in a bottle, The
Investigating Officer also seized the shirt of the delinquent

official. The Investigating Officer secured Sri Surendra Kumar

‘who then was working as Junior Engineer attached to the

Department of Public Works, Port and Inland Water Transport,
Kollegala Sub-Division and got prepared sketch of place of trap.
On being asked by the Investigating Officer for production of the
file of the complainant, the delinquent official secured the file

through his staff. The Investigating Officer obtained xerox
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copies of sheets of the file and after getting those sheets
attested seized those sheets. On being questioned by the
Investigating officer about the tainted cash, delinquent official
offered statement in writing. The complainant returned the
voice recorder to the Investigating Officer. The Investigating
Officer got transmitted the contents of the voice recorder to
compact discs. The Investigating Officer conducted trap
mahazar in the chamber of the delinquent official:  Thereafter,
the Investigating Officer brought the delinquent official to
Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara. On the instructions
of the Investigating Officer his staff produced the delinquent
official in the Home Office of the Principal District and Sessions
Judge, Chamarajanagara. Further investigation conducted by
the Investigating Officer unearthed prima facie case against the
delinquent official and after obtaining sanction for prosecution
the Investigating Officer filed charge sheet against the delinquent
official in the Court of Principal District and Sessions Judge,

Chamarajanagara.

. On the basis of the report of the Investigating Officer placed by

the Additional Director General of Police, Karnataka Lokayukta,
Bengaluru before the Hon'ble Upalokayukta-2 Karnafaka,
Hon’ble Upalokayukta, Karnataka in exercise of the powers
conferred upon under section 7(2) of The Karnataka Lokayukta

Act, 1984 took up investigation which prima facie unearthed

that delinquent official has committed misconduct within the

purview of Rule 3(1){i) of The Karnataka Electricity Board
Employees’ Service (Conduct) Regulations, 1988 and
accordingly, in exercise of the powers conferred upon under
section 12(3) of The Karnataka Lokayukta Act, 1984

recommended the competent authority to initiate disciplinary-
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proceedings against the delinquent official under Regulation
number 14-A (1)a(i) of The Karnataka Electricity Board
Employees’ (Classification, Discipline, Control and Appeal)
Regulations, 1987 and to entrust the inquiry to the Hon’ble
Upalokayukta, Karnataka.

. Subsequent to the report dated 19/02/2016 under section 12(3)

of The Karnataka Lokayukta Act, 1984 Order bearing number
BEFRD/RD 21/3616/2014-15, edorwiecy BTw0s 16/04/2016 has been issued by

the Director (Administration and Human Resources) Karnataka
Power Transmission Corporation Limited entrusting the inquiry
against the delinquent official to the Hon’ble Upalokayukta,

Karnataka.

. Subsequent to the Order =mOd/eD 21/3616/2014-15 wrseioc Beod

16/04/2016 Order number UPLOK-2/DE/111/2016 Bengaluru

" dated 21/04/2016 has been ordered by the Hon'ble
: Upalokayukta, Karnataka nominating the Additional Registrar,

Enquiries-11, Karnataka Lokayukta, Bengaluru as Inquiry
Officer to frame charges and to conduct department inquiry

against the delinquent official.

. Articles of charge dated 03/09/20 16 at Annexure-I which

includes statement of imputation of misconduct at Annexure-11
framed against the delinquent official is the following:
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. In response to due-service of articles of charge, delinquent official
appeared before this authority on 01/10/2016. In the course of
first oral statement of delinquent official recorded on 01/10/2016
he pleaded not guilty. Subsequently delinquent official engaged
defence assistant for his defence.

. In the course of written statement signed by the defence assistant
filed on 02/11/2016, while admitting the tenure of delinquent
official at the relevant point of time the alleged misconduct has
been denied. It is contended that the delinquent official never
demanded and accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400/- on
06/12/2014. It is contended that the complainant never met
the delinquent official along with the indent on 27/11/2014. It
is contended that the delinquent official never had seen the
shadow witness on 06/12/2014. It is contended that the
delinquent official has not committed any offence punishable
under section 7,the offence defined under section 13(1)(d) which is
punishable under section 13(2) of The Prevention of Corruption

Act, 1088.
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10. The disciplinary authority has examined complainant Sri.
R.Krishna as PWI, panch witness by name Sri. M.V,
Radhakrishna as PW2, shadow witness by name Sri. C.Swamy as
PW3 and the Investigating Officer Sri. Kyathegowda as PW4,

11. During evidence of the complainant attested copy of his
complaint dated 06/12/2014 in a single sheet is marked as per
Ex P1, attested copy of licence dated 30/08/2011 in a single
sheet is marked as per Ex P2, attested copy of work order dated
28/10/2014 in a single sheet is marked as per Ex P3, attested
copy of work order dated 29/10/2014 in a single sheet is marked
as per Ex P4, attested copy of work order dated 28/10/2014 in a
single sheet is marked as per Ex P5, attested copy of work order

~dated 28/10/2014 in a single sheet is marked és per Ex P6,

“ attested copy of indent dated 26/11/2014 in a single sheet is

. marked as per Ex P7, attested copy of indent dated 26/11/2014
in a single sheet is marked as per Ex P8, attested copy of indent
dated 26/11/2014 in a single sheet is marked as per Ex P9,
attested copy of indent dated 26/11/2014 in a single sheet is
marked as per Ex P10, attested copy of office memorandum dated
21/11/2014 in a single sheet of the Executive Engineer {Electrical
O & M), CESC , Kollegala is marked as per Ex P11, attested copy
of a single sheet dated 06 /12 /2014 containing the particulars
of currency notes is marked as per Ex P12, attested copy of pre-
trap mahazar dated 06/12/2014 in three sheets is marked as per
Ex P13, thirty three attested sheets dated 06 /12/2014 of the file
pertaining to M. Revanna, Shivaiah, Devajamma and N,
Hanumantha  are marked as per Ex P14, attested copy of
statement dated 06/12/2014 in a single sheet of the delinquent
official given before PW4 is marked as per Ex P15, attested copy
of trap mahazar dated 06/12/2014 in five sheets is marked as
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per Ex P16. During cross examination of PW1, xerox copy of
rough sketch dated 06/12/2014 in a single sheet is marked as
per Ex D1, signature of PW1 found on Ex D1 is marked as per Ex
D1(a). During cross examination of PW2 his signature found on
Ex D1 is marked s per Ex D1(b). During evidence of PW4,
attested copy of FIR dated 06/12/2014 in a single sheet in crime
number 11/2014 of Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara
is marked as per Ex P17, attested copy of the report dated
22/12/2014 in a single sheet is marked as per Ex P18.

12. During second oral statement of the delinquent official
recorded on 23/08/2019 he has stated that he would get
examined himself as defence witness and also that he would
examine the defence witnesses by name Kiran and Vijayakumar.

13. Delinquent Official got himself examined as DW1. No
documents are tendered in evidence during the evidence of DWI.
Delinquent official has not examined any defence witness.

14, In the course of written argument of the Presenting Officer
she has referred to the allegations levelled in the articles of
charge. Relying upon the evidence of PWs 1 to 4 she sought to
contend that charge levelled against the delinquent official stands
established. With reference to the evidence of the delinquent
official it is contended that the delinquent official has admitted
change of colour of finger wash and also has stated that that
there is no enmity between him and the complainant.

15. In the course of written argument signed by the defence
assistant and the delinquent official reference is made to the
articles of charge. It is contended that no documents are
collected by the Investigating Officer pointing out that
Devajamma, Revanna and Shivaiah had entrusted the work to

the delinquent official. 1t is contended that charge that earlier to
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issue of work order the delinquent official collected a sum of
Rs.200/- is not established. It is contended that there is no
acceptable evidence to establish that earlier to the issue of work
order delinquent official demanded and accepted illegal
gratification of Rs.200/-. It is contended that the recorded
version of conversation is not brought into the notice of the
complainant during evidence. It is contended that the disciplinary
authority has not examined Sri. Jagadeesh who was entrusted
with the work of release of indents to the electrical contractor. It
islcontended that no evidence is on record to establish that
indent was placed at the hands of the complainant. It is
contended that Exs P7 to P10 nowhere would show that

- delinquent official was under obligation to subscribe signatures on

the original of Exs P7 to P10. It is contended that PW4 has not
produced the memory card of the mobile hand set. It is
contended that transcripted version of the conversation as found
in Ex P13 cannot be admitted in evidence. It is contended that
PW4 has not transmitted the memory card for scientific
examination. It is contended that PW4 has equally not
transmitted the compact discs for scientific examination, It is
contended that PW4 has not obtained sample voice of the
complainant and delinqlient official for scientific examination. It
is contended that the words of conversation found in Ex P16
would show that there was no demand for illegal gratification. It is
contended that Ex P16 would show that conversation between
the complainant and delinquent official is not recorded. It is
contended that there is no evidence to establish that the
complainant had met the delinquent official on 06/12/2014. 1t is
contended that in the course of the complaint date is not

mentioned touching payment of a sum of Rs.200 /- to the
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delinquent official; It is contended that the complainant has
admitted that on 03/11/2014 the delinquent official has signed
the work order. It is contended that nothing is mentioned in the
complaint the reason behind not filing the complaint either on
04/12/2014 or on 05/12/2014. It is contended that the
complainant has admitted that the delinquent official issued the
work order on 31/10/2014. It is. contended that subsequent to
the work order the items mentioned in the estimate are to be
issued to the complainant. It is contended that indent will not be

handed over to the complainant. It is contended that during

 evidence PW3 who'is the shadow witness has stated that he was

at the door of the delinquent official at the time when the
complainant approached the delinquent official on 06/12/2014.
It is contended that during evidence the shadow witness has
stated that the conversation between the complainant and the
delinquent official which took place on 06/12 /2014 does not find
place in the trap mahazar. It is contended that evidence of PWs
9 and 4 would lead to draw inference that PW4 has not placed the
complaint before PWs 2 and 3 to go through the contents of the
complainant. It1is contended that PW4 concocted the documents.
It is contended that since PW4 has not transmitted the memory
card for scientific examination it needs to be observed that
demand for illegal gratification is not established. It is contended
that the location of ' the complainant, shadow witness and
delinquent official does not find place in the sketch the xerox copy
of which is at Ex D1. It is contended that during evidence the
delinquent official has stated that on 03/11/2014 work order has
been issued by him and that indent will not be handed over to
the complainant. It is contended that during evidence the

delinquent official has stated that on 03/11/2014 the
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subordinate officer of the delinquent official collected the items
from the godown and handed over to the complainant, It is
contended that during evidence the complajnant' has stated
that his statement the attested copy of which is at Ex P15 is the
outcome of force. It is contended that during evidence the
delinquent. official has stated that palm of both hands of
delinquent official are held by Lokayukta Police staff which has
resulted in change of colour of finger wash. It is contended that
the contents of the statement the attested copy of which is at Ex
P15 are acceptable for the reason that delinquent official has not
endorsed that contents of Ex P15 are incorrect. Decision in
Omkar Lal Sharma V/S State of Madhya Pradesh reported in
20 10(4) Criminal Court cases 0273(MP) and decision in Arya
Chowdhury V/S State of West Bengal reported in LAWS (CAL)
2006-2-61 are relied upon by the delinquent official. It is thus
sought to contend that delinquent official is not guilty of the
alleged misconduct.
16. In tune with the articles of charge, the point which arises
for determination is : |
Whether it stands established that during the
tenure of the delinquent official as Assistant Executive
'Engineer (Electrical ) attached to Chamundeshwari
Electricity Supply Company Limited (CESC), Yalanduru Sub-
Division, Yalanduru, Chamarajanagara District, in
connection with electrification of the residential building of
Smt. Devajamma, Sri, Hanumantha, Sri. Revanna and Sri.
Shivaiah the delinquent official demanded and accepted
illegal gratification of Rs.400/- from the complainant about
one month earlier to 06 /12/2014 and thereafter, again, in

connection with the said task the delinquent official
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demanded and accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400 /- from
the complainant between 4.10 P.M and 4.20 P.M in the office
chamber of the delinquent official at Yalanduru and during
investigation conducted by the Police Inspector attached to
Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara in crime
number 1172014  of Lokayukta Police Station,
Chamarajanagara the delinquent official failed to offer
satisfactory explanation touching possession of tainted
cash of Rs.400/- between 4.10 P.M and 4.20 P.M in the
office chamber of delinquent official at Chamarajanagara
and thereby delinquent official is guilty of misconduct
within the purview of Rule 3(1)(i) of The Karnataka Electricity
Board Employeés’ Service (Conduct) Regulations, 19887
Evidence of the complainant (PW1) that at the relevant
point of time delinquent official was working as Assistant
Executive Engineer attached to Chamundeshwari Electric
Supply Company Limited - {in short, “CESC”) is mnot under
challenge. His cvidence that on 27/11/2014 work order has
been issued by the delinquent official is not under challenge.
Lodging of complaint by the complainant against the
delinquent official as stated by the complainant during his
evidence is not under challenge. Evidence of PW4 that on
06/12/2014 the complainant lodged the complaint at 10.30
A.M before him in Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara
and his evidence that on the basis of the same he registered
case against the delinquent official in crime number 11/2014
for the offence punishable under section 7 of Prevention of -
Corruption Act, 1988 is not under challenge. Ex P1 which is
the attested copy of the complaint and Ex P17 which is the

attested copy of FIR are not under challenge.
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Evidence of PW4 that subsequent to registration of the
complaint he secured the panch witness (PW2) and shadow
witness (PW3) to Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara
is not under challenge. Evidence of the complainant that
PWs 2 and 3 are secured to Lokayukta Police Station,
Chamarajanagara is not under challenge. Evidence of PWs 2
and 3 that they appeared before PW4 in Lokayukta Police
Station, Chamarajanaga on 06/12/2014 is also not under
challenge. Production of four currency note of denomination of
Rs.100/- each before PW4 in Lokayukta Police Station,
Chamargjanagara as stated by PW1 during evidence is not
under challenge, That portion of his evidence finds place in
the evidence of PWs 2 to 4. Evidence of PW1 that numbers of
currency notes are noted on a sheet of paper the attested copy
of which is at Ex P12 is not under challenge. That portion of
his evidence finds support from the evidence of PWs 2 to 4,
Evidence of PW2 that he noted the numbers of currency notes
on the original of Ex P12 and the evidence of PW4 that he got

- entered the numbers of currency notes on the original of Ex

P12 through PW2 is not under challenge. - It is in the evidence
of PWs 1 to 4 that phenolphthalein powder has been applied
on the above notes. It is in the evidence of PW 1 that PW3
placed the tainted cash in the left side pocket of his shirt. This
portion of his evidence is not under challenge. Evidence of
PW3 that he placed the tainted notes in the left side pocket of
the shirt of PW1 and the evidence of PWs 2 and 4 that PW3
placed the tainted notes in the left side pocket of the shirt of
the complainant is also not under challenge. Preparation of
solution with water and sodium carbonate powder as stated

by PWs 1 to 4 is not under challenge. Evidence of PW3 that
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after placing the tainted cash in the left side pocket of the
shirt of PW1 he immersed fingers of hands in the solution
and consequential change of colour of finger wash is not
under challenge. Evidence of PWs 1, 2 and 4 that finger
wash of hands of PW3 turned to pink colour is not under
challenge. PWs 1 to 4 have thus categorically stated during
evidence that. pre-trap mahazar has been conducted in
Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara. Ex P13 is the
attested copy of pre-trap mahazar. It is in the evidence of
pw4 that he instructed the compla:inaht' to approach the
delinquent official and to give tainted cash only in case of
demand. PW4 also stated that he instructed the complainant
to convey message in case of acceptance of tainted cash by the
delinquent official. It is also in the evidence of PW4 that he
instructed PW3 to accompany the complainant -and to observe
as to what transpires between the complainant and delinquent
official. Evidence of PW1 touching production of Exs P2 to P11
pefore PW4 at the time of lodging of complaint is not under
challenge. - Evidence of PWs 1 to 4 is worthy of acceptance
touching the = proceedings of pre-trap mahazar and therefore
on the strength of their evidence it needs to be expressed that
PW4 conducted pre-trap mahazar as primitive step of
investigation.

Evidence of PWs 1 to 4 that subsequent to pre-trap
mahazar they along with the other Lokayukta Police staff
reached near the office of delinquent official at Yalanduru is
not under challenge. The evidence of PWs 1 and 3 that after
their entry to the office of delinquent official they came to know
that delinquent official had already left the office for the

purpose of attending meeting is not under challenge. It is in’
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the evidence of PWs 2 and 4 that they came to know through
PWs 1 and 3 that delinquent official was not found in the
office.

20. It is in the evidence of PW1 (complainant) that after
4.00 P.M on the day of trap the delinquent official returned to
the office of delinquent official and afterwards he along with
PW3 entered the said office. This portion of his evidence is
not under challenge. . It is in the evidence of PW3 that at about
4.00 on the day of trap the delinquent official returned to the
office and that the delinquent official was pointed out to him
by the complainant. This portion of his evidence is not under
challenge. His evidence that he also entered the office of
delinquent official along with the complainant is not under
chaﬂenge.

21. During evidence the complainant (PW1) has stated that
after his entry to the office of delinquent official along with the
shadow witness (PW3) he wished the delinquent official and
asked to subscribe signature on the indent. Suggestion
posed to the complainant that before he approached the
delinquent official duly signed indents were already handed
over to the Assistant Engineer by name Jagadeesh by the
delinquent official has been denied by him. Suggestion posed
to PWI that he alone had been to meet the delinquent official
on 06/12/2014 has been denied by him. Exs P7 to P10 are
the attested copies of indents dated 26/11/2014. Exs P7 to
P10 would show that Jagadeesh who then was working as
Assistant Engineer in the office of delinquent official signed
these indents.  Signature of the delinquent official are not
found on Exs P7 to P10 and therefore suggestion posed to the

complairiant during cross examination that the delinquent
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official had already handed over the duly signed indents to
Jagadeesh has no substratum to adhere.

Regarding the alleged demand and acceptance, it is in
the evidence of complainant that after he asked to subscribe
the signature on the indent the delinquent official demanded
cash by way of signs with right hand fingers and in response
he offered tainted cash which has been accepted by the
delinquent official with right hand and afterwards placed the
same in the left side pocket of the shirt and thereafter signed
the indent. Whether the delinquent official signed the indents
after accepting —tainted cash needs to be appreciated with
reference to sheet numbers 32 and 33 of Ex P 14, Sheet
aumber 32 of Ex P14 is the attested copy of the indent of M.
Revanna. Reverse page of sheet number 32 of Ex P14 is the
attested copy of the indent of Shivaiah. Sheet number 33 of Ex
P14 is the attested copy of the indent of Devajamma. Reverse
page of sheet number 33 of Ex P14 is the attested copy of the
indent of N. Hanumantha. These attested copies of indents
are dated 26/11/2014. It is seen in sheet numbers 32 and 33
of Ex P14 and also reverse page of sheet numbers 32 and 33 of
Fx P14 that these are signed by the delinquent official on
06/12/2014 i.e., signed on the date of trap. No suggestion is
posed to PWs 1 to 4 that these signatures arc obtained by
force soon after trap after securing the original sheets of Ex
P14. Even during evidence the delinquent official has not
whispered anything that signatures areobtained by force soon
after securing the original sheets of Ex P14. It is thus clear
that the delinquent official signed these indents after
accepting illegal gratification. Suggestion posed to the

complainant during cross examination that official work of the
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complainant was not pending with the delinquent official on
06/12/2014 has been rightly denied by the complainant. It is
thus clear that official work of the complainant was pending
with the delinquent official on the day of trap. It is brought
out during cross examination of the complainant that the
required items are to be received after obtaining the
signature of the delinquent official on the indent. This portion
of answer elicited during cross examination of the complainant
instead of supporting the defence supports the case of the
disciplinary authority. Evidence of the complainant that the
delinquent official demanded cash by way of signal with fingers
of right hand has not been specifically assailed in its true letter
and spirit.  That portion of the evidence of the complainant
literally has remained unchallenged and therefore the said
unchallenged testimony of the complainant needs acceptance
which unerringly establishes specific demand by the
delinquent official. Suggestion posed to the complainant during
Cross examination that the complainant has not paid cash of
Rs.400/- to the delinquent official on 06/12/2014 has been
denied by him. Evidence of the complainant that after
accepting tainted cash with the right hand the delinquent
official placed the same in the left side pocket of the shirt has
not been assailed in its true letter and spirit during the cross
examination of the complainant. During evidence the
delinquent official has not ventured upon to deny the alleged
demand and by way of signs with right hand and also
acceptance of tainted cash. Nothing is stated by the delinquent -
official during his evidence that he neither demanded by way of
signs with right hand nor accepted the tainted cash with right
hand. Nothing equally is stated by the delinquent official
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during evidence that he has not placed the tainted cash in
the left side pocket of shirt. Thus, upon meticulous
appreciation of the evidence of the complainant 1 am
persuaded to accept his evidence which establishes that in
order to extend official favour the delinquent official demanded
and accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400/- on the day of
trap.

23. In order to lend further assurance to the evidence of the
complainant touching the alleged demand and acceptance of
tainted cash of Rs.400/- the evidence of PW3 who is the
shadow witness needs to be appreciated. During evidence PW3
has stated that after placing of .four indents by the
complainant the delinquent official demanded cash by way of
signs with right hand fingers in response to which the
complainant offered tainted cash which is accepted by the
delinquent official and after acceptance the delinquent official
placed tainted cash in the:left side pocket of shirt. During
cross examination though PW3 has stated that he was at the
door of the office of the delinquent official he has stated
further during cross examination that in case door is closed,
then, nothing is visible from outside but door was not found
closed. In the presence of these answers the presence of
PW3 at the close proximity cannot be doubted. Suggestions
posed to PW3 during cross examination suggesting that he
has not witnessed as to what transpired inside the office of the
delinquent official has been denied by him. Suggestion posed
to PW3 during his cross examination that the delinquent
official neither demanded by way of signs nor accepted bribe
has been denied by him. Placing of tainted cash by the
delinquent official in the left side pocket of his shirt as deposed




W
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by PW3 has not been assailed in its true letter and spirit
during his cross examination. PW3 is a unbiased witness.
Nothing is brought out during cross examination of PW3 that
PW3 was aimed at false implication of the delinquent official.
No inherent infirmities are found in the testimony of PW3
and therefore his evidence needs acceptance, PW3 has

corroborated the testimony of the complainant in all material

-particulars and therefore his evidence lends further assurance

to the testimony of the complainant,

It is in the evidence of the complainant that after his
signal Lokayukta Police staff and PW2 entered the office of the
delinquent official and soon after the entry he pointed out
the delinquent official and expressed that cash is received by
the delinquent official. Evidence of the complainant that soon
after the entry of Lokayukta Police staff he pointed out the
delinquent official and stated that cash is accepted by the
delinquent official has not been assailed during his cross
examination and as such the said unchallenged portion of his
evidence incriminates the delinquent official. During evidence
the shadow witness (PW) has stated that after the entry of
Lokayukta Police staff the complainant pointed out the
delinquent official and expressed that delinquent official
accepted cash. This portion of his evidence has not been
assailed during his cross examination and therefore the same
needs acceptance which incriminates the delinquent official.
Evidence of PW2 who is the panch witness that after his entry
to the office of delinquent official along with Lokayukta staff
the complainant pointed out the delinquent official and
cxpressed that the delinquent official accepted cash has not

been assailed during his cross examination and therefore the
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said portion of his unchallenged testimony incriminates the
delinquent official. Evidence of PW4 that soon after his entry
to the office of the delinquent efficiai the complainant pointed
out the delinquent official and stated that the delinquent
official after accepting indents accepted tainted notes after
demand by way of signal with right hand has not been
assailed during his cross examination and therefore the said
version of his unchallenged evidence needs acceptance which
portion of his evidence incriminates the delinquent official.
Even during evidence the delinquent- official has not stated
that the complainant has not stated so after the entry of PW4,
staff of PW4 and PW2. S

It is in the evidence of PW1 that finger wash of both
hands of delinquent official in the solution prepared with
water and sodium carbonate powder turned to light pink
colour and wash of right side pocket of shirt of the
delinquent official turned to pink colour. It is in the
evidence of PWs 2 to 4 that 'finger. wash of both hands of
the delinquent official and wash of right side pocket of
shirt of the delinquent official turned light pink colour.
Though PW1 has stated that the wash of left side pocket
of shirt of delinquent official turned to pink colour which
portion of his evidence is not in full conformity with the
evidence of PWs 2 to 4 the said variation is negligible
which will not discredit'his evidence. Suggestions posed
to PW1 that fingers of hands of the delinquent official
and left side pocket of shirt of the delinquent official are

not subjected to wash and that those wash have not
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turned to light pink colour are denied. Similar suggestions
posed to PW 2 are denied. Evidence of PWs 3 and 4
touching change of colour of finger wash of hands of
delinquent official and change of colour of wash of left
side pocket of shirt of delinquent official has remained
unchallenged. In the course of evidence the delinquent
official has stated that on the day of trap after wishing
by way of shaking hand by Lokayukta Police staff his
hands are held by Lokayukta Police staff. The said
defence is not projected during cross-examination of PWs
1 to 4 and therefore the said defence is nothing but an
afterthought. During evidence the delinquent official has
not stated that fingers of his hands and left side pocket
of his shirt are not subjected to wash. He equally has not
stated during his evidence anything about change of
colour of finger wash and also change of colour of wash of

the left side pocket of the shirt. Upon appreciation of the

‘evidence as discussed above it needs to be expressed

that change of colour of finger wash of hands and change
of colour of wash of left side pocket of shirt further lends
assurance to hold that the delinquent official accepted
tainted cash.

| It is in the evidence of the complainant that tainted
cash has been seized from the possessi_on of delinquent
official.  During evidence though the complainant has
not specifically stated that personal cash amounting to

Rs.2,360/- has been seized the same will not discredit his
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evidence. Suggestion posed to the complainant during
cross examination that tainted cash has not been seized is
denied. |

27. During evidence PWs 2 to 4 have stated touching
geizure of tainted cash of Rs.400/- from the possession of
delinquent official. PWs 1 to 4 have also stated that
personal cash of Rs.2,360/- which was possessed by the
delinquent official has been returned to the delinquent
official. Suggestion posed to PWQ that tainted cash was
not found in the left side pocket of the shirt of the
delinquent official has been denied by him. Suggestion
posed to PW2 that tainted cash of Rs. 400/ - has not been
seized has been denied by h1m Suggestmn posed to
PW2 that personal cash of Rs. 2, 360 /- was in the left side
pocket of shirt of the delmquent official has been denied
by him. Ev1dence of PWS touching selzure of tainted cash
has not been assaﬂed during his cross examination and
therefore the said portion of his unchalleng_ed testimony
needs acceptance Evidence of PW4 touching seizure of
tainted cash has not been assailed during his cross
examination and therefore evidence of PW4 that he seized
the tainted cash which was produced before him by the
delinquent official after lifting the same from the left side
pocket of the shirt needs acceptance. During evidence,
the delinquent official has not stated anything about
tainted cash which was found in the left side pocket of his

shirt. He has not stated. during evidence that tainted
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cash has not been seized from his possession. Evidence of
PWs 1 to 4 thus establishes that tainted cash of
Rs.400/- which was in the left side pocket of the shirt of
the delinquent official has been seized.

28, PWs 1 to 4 have categorically stated during evidence
touching seizure of the file the attested copy of which
consisting of thirty three sheets which are marked
together at Ex P14, Seizure of the file as stated by PWs 1
to 4 during their evidence is not under challenge.

29, During evidence PWs 1 to 4 have stated that the
delinquent official offered explanation the attested copy of
which is at Ex P15, During evidence the delinquent
official has stated that his stétement has been obtained
by posing threat. Whether this portion of evidence of the
delinquent official needs to be accepted or not is the
matter which needs to be appreciated. Nothing is
suggested to PWs 1 to 4 during their cross examination
that . statement of the delinquent. . official has been
obtaining by posing threat. During cross examination of
PW4 it is elicited that the delinquent official gave
statement in writing on 06/12/2014. It is further stated
during cross examination of PW4 that the delinquent
official has stated in the said statement that the
complainant thrusted cash into the pocket. Nothing is
found elicited during cross examination of PW 4 that

statement of the delinquent - official is the outcome of

threat, Page number 8 of the written argument of the
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delinquent official needs to be looked into. It is stated in
page number 8 of the written argument of the delinquent
official that since the delinquent official has not
endorsed that the contents of his statement are false the
statement of the delinquent official needs to be accepted.
In presence of the same, evidence of the delinquent
official that his statement has been obtained by force
cannot be accepted. It needs to be expressed that the
delinquent official has given the statement at his own
volition. The relevant portlon of the statement of the
delinquent official the attested copy of which is at Ex P15
is worthy to be reproduced Wthh reads |

“ geqyord  Qetodd BOORUE0B, 5:36-}2 2014 doz:b oD
ohwomety  sgospodet  B23e000053 mqs ﬁ@edﬁm nCrTel
Quetdors® mﬁ?oi Bpocsy e’ _z.ao_mﬁ Be TER '@mﬁs
gotigineletnisy ;)eaé:)»é; S, SRR HEERd womd TNy
maERire  Godot’ aé&g chegsy o, 2eedrs ROQIEI0BEIO0)
T ORIy &30S0 JpmEe oewmery BRUnd
Macsd smecdty Sred aSec'n’. e woBEord BRCHE QT
e9530h  200DORry  BIDEDR® RSN faégodaﬁfao@cg o80  TE)
?uagoaomddo 2a0eRrIEe aﬁaﬁ?%’ Dagod SV 2008 meRd B8 W)
ea3try  obeEitlk 2000w Snecdy, B3 ?azgoadmdd)
2y00ers TRRIOONI0GS B aszd:a sSwEe Seeddy, B 08 BT
ey Shees  eRRdERtond  BeR) 8@@@ BRICDTIBER
et ROIE e e IR o en) conderoeotnry Do) CSmEITe
Doy SRUENDE NOWOTITY sOBREY) Te, o3 eSO

BozohRBes.”




29
UPLOK-2/DE/111/2016 /ARE-11

The portion as extracted hereinabove would show
that the delinquent official has admitted placing of the
indents before him. The said statement is the defence
formulated by the delinquent official at the earliest point of
time. Nothing is found suggested to the complainant
during his cross examination that the complainant forcibly
placed cash inside the pocket. In the absence of such a
suggestion the defence that the complainant placed cash
in the pocket by force cannot be accepted. If really the
complainant had forced Vcash into his pocket, then, the
complainant would have retorted by way of protest. In
these circﬁmstances, the contents of Ex P15 as extracted
hereinabove  will not lend assufance to the defence. It
needs to be remembered that since strict rules of The
Indian Evidence Act, 1872 are not applicable  while
appreciating evidence in the inquiry of this nature Ex P15 is
not hit by sections 24 to 26 of The Indian Evidence Act,
1872. Ex P15 incriminates the delinquent official.

30. Evidence of PWs 1 to 4 would show that trap mahazar
has been conducted in the office of delinquent official. Upon
appreciation of the evidence of PWs 1 to 4 I find nothing
worthy to hold that the trap mahazar has not heen
conducted in the office of the delinquent official.

31. Though it is in the evidence of the complainant that
the voice of thé delinquent official was not found recorded
in the voice recorder which was handed over to him by PW4

W;)W the same alone will not lend assurance to the defence. It
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needs to be borne in mind that oral evidence of any witness
touching what is seen and observed would assume the
character of primary evidence. Electronic mode of evidence
if secured would lend assurance to the oral evidence.
Therefore, though PW has not placed any material to show
that he has resorted to secure opinion from the expert to
establish the contents. of the memory chip the same will
not discredit the evidence placed from the side of the
disciplinary authority. Ex D1 which is the xerox copy of
sketch of the place of trap equally will not uproot the trap
laid by PW4. R

32. Nothing worthy is =brough’; out during cross
examination of the complaiﬁant that he was aimed at false
implication of the delinquenﬁ official. ~ Nothing equally is
brought o.u't during cfoss éxamiﬁlation of PW4 that he had
any malafide intention for implication of the delinquent
official. Upon appreciation 6f the evidence of PWs 1 to 4
keeping in mind" the vyardstick of preponderance of
probabilities I hold that evidence of PWs 1 and 3
establishes that the delinquent official derhanded and
accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400 /- in the | chamber of
the office building of the delinquent official on 06/12/2014
between 4.10 P.M and 4.20 P.M. Evidence of PWs 1 to 4
establishes seizure of tainted cash soon after trap from the
left side pocket of shirt of the delinquent official.
Explanation offered at Ex P15 would not point out the

innocence of the delinquent official. Evidence of
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delinquent official does not establish the manner in which
tainted cash was found in his possession soon after trap.
Failure on the part of the delinquent official to offer
satisfactory explanation touching possession of tainted cash
soon after trap amounts to misconduct.

In so far as acceptance of a sum of Rs.400 /- earlier
to the date of trap, while it is found in Ex P1 which is the
attested copy of the complaint of the complainant that
earlier to lodging of complaint the delinquent official
demanded and accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400/- the
said allegation is not specifically stated by the complainant
during evidence. During evidence the complainant .has
stated that earlier to 27/11/2014 the delinquent official
accepted a sum of Rs.200/-. In the presence of this
material discrepancy I am not persuaded to express that
the said portion of charge has remained established.
Therefore, I hold that the first portion of the charge that
about one month earlier to 06/12/2014 the official
demanded and accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400/- is
not proved. In the background of the evidence as discussed
earlier [ hold that charge against the delinquent official that
he demanded and accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400/-
in the chamber of his office building on 06/12/2014

between 4.10 P.M and 4.20 PM and during investigation

conducted by PW4 he failed to offer satisfactory explanation
for possession of the said tainted cash soon after trap

stands established,
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[n the decisions relied upon in the course of written
argument of the delmquent official law is not laid down as to
what kind of act amounts to misconduct and therefore, in
my view, the above decisions will not lend support to the
defence. In the presence of overwhelming evidence as
discussed above I am not inclined to accept the defence put
forward in the course of written argument and equally I am
not inclined to accept the contentions put forward in the

course of written argument of the delinquent official.

For the foregoing reasons I proceed with the following:'
REPORT

Charge agamst the delinquent off101a1 that durmg his tenure
as = Assistant Executive Engneer (Electncal ) attached to
Chamundeshwari Electncfuy Supply Company Limited (CESC),
Yalanduru Sub-Division, Yalanduru, Chamara;anagara District, in
connection with clectrlﬁcatlon of the residential building of Smt.
Devajamma, Sri. Hanumantha, Sri. Revanna and Sri. Shivaiah he
demanded and accepted illegal gratification of Rs. 400/~ from the
complainant about one month earlier to 06/12/2014 and thereby
he is guilty of misconduct within the purview of Rule 3(1)(i) of The
Karnataka Electricity Board Employees’ Service (Conduct)

‘Regulations, 1988 is not proved.

Charge against the delinquent official that during his tenure as
Assistant  Executive  Engineer (Electrical) attached to
Chamundeshwari Electmmty Supply Company Limited (CESC),

Yalanduru Sub-Division, Yalanduru, Chamarajanagara District, in
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connection with electrification of the residential building of Smut.
Pevajamma, Sri. Hanumantha, Sri. Revanna and Sri. Shivaiah he
demanded and accepted illegal gratification of Rs.400 /- from the
complainant between 4.10 P.M and 4.20 P.M in his office chamber
at Yalanduru and during Investigation conducted by the Police
Inspector attached to Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara
in crime number 11/2014 of Lokayukta Police Station,
Chamarajanagara he failed to offer satisfactory explanation
touching possession of tainted cash of Rs.400/- between 4.10
PM and 4.20 PM in his office chamber at  Yalanduru,
Chamarajanagara District and thereby he is guilty of misconduct
within the purview of Rule 3(1){i) of The Karnataka Electricity
Board Employees’ Service (Condubt) Regulations, 1988 is proved.

Delinquent official is due for retirement on superannuation
on 30/11/2028.

Submit this report to the Hon’ble Upalokayukta-2,
Karnataka in a  sealed cover forthwith along with connected

records.

(V.G. BOPAIAH)
Additional Registrar, Enquiries-11,
Karnataka Lokayukta, Bengaluru.

ANNEXURE

List of witnesses examined on behalf of the Disciplinary Authority:-

PW1:- Sti. R. Krishna.
PW2:- Sri. M.V, Radhakrishna.
PW3:- Sri, C.Swamy.

PW4:- Sri.Kyathegowda.




List of witnesse

DW 1:-

List of d

1.

10.

11,

12.
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s examined on behalf Delinquent Official:-

Sri. A.M.Shankar (Delinquent Official)

ocuments marked on behalf of Disciplinary Authority:-

Ex P1

Ex P2

Ex P3

Ex P4

Ex P5

Ex Po

Ex P7

Ex P8

Ex PO

Ex P10

Ex P11

Ex P12

Attested copy of complaint dated 06/12/2014
in a single sheet of the complainant (PW1).

Attested copy of licence dated 30/08/2011 in
a single sheet.

Attested copy of work order dated 28/10/2014
in a single sheet.

Attested copy of work order dated 29/10/ 2014
in a single sheet.

Attested copy of work order dated 28/10/2014
in a single sheet.

Attested copy of work order dated 28/10/2014
in a single sheet.

Attested copy of indent dated 26/11/2014 in
a single sheet.

Attested copy of indent dated 26/11/2014 in &a
single sheet.

Attested copy of indent dated 26/11/2014 in a
single sheet.

Attested copy of indent dated 26/11/2014 in a
single sheet.

Attested copy of office memorandum  dated
21/11/2014 in a single sheet of the Executive
Engineer (Electrical O & M), CESC, Kollegala.

Attested copy of a single sheet dated
06/12/2014 containing the particulars of
currency notes.




13.

11,

15.

16.

17.

Ex

Ex

Ex

Ex

Ex

Ex

P13

P11

P15

P16

P17

P18
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Attested copy of pre-trap mahazar dated
06/12/2014 in three sheets.

Thirty three attested sheets dated 06 /12/2011
of the file pertaining to M. Revanna, Shivaiah,
Devajamma and N, Hanumantha.

Attested copy of statement dated 06 /1272014
in a single sheet of the delinquent official
given before PW4,

Attested copy of trap mahazar dated
06/12/2014 in five sheet.

Attested copy of FIR dated 06/12/2014 in a
single sheet in crime number 11/2014 of
Lokayukta Police Station, Chamarajanagara.

Attested copy of the report dated
06/12/2014 in a single sheet.

List of documents marked on behalf of Delinquent Official;-

1

Ex D1

Ex D1(a)

Ex D1(b)

Xerox copy of rough sketch  dated
06/12/2014 in a single sheet.

Signature of PW1 found on Ex D1,

Signature found on Ex D1.

%BVYDW

(V.G. BOPAIAH)
Additional Registrar, Enquiries- 1 1,
Karnataka Lokayukta, Bengaluru.
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KARNATAKA LOKAYUKTA

No.LOK/INQ/14-A/111/2016/ ARE-11 Multi Storied Building,
Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Veedhi,
Bengaluru-560 001.
Dated 09.06.2020.

RECOMMENDATION

Sub:- Departmental inquiry against Shri A.M.Shankar, the
then Assistant Executive Engineer(E), Yelanduru
Sub-division, CESC, Mysore - reg.

Ref:- 1) Proceedings Order No. KPTCL/B21/3616/2014-15
dated 16.04.2016.

2)  Nomination order No.  UPLOK-
2/DE/111/2016  dated  21.04.2016  of
Upalokayukta, State of Karnataka.

3) Inquiry report dated ~ 08.06.2020 of

Additional  Registrar = of  Enquiries-11,
Karnataka Lokayukta, Bengaluru.

The KPICL by its order dated 16.04.2016 initiated the
disciplinary proceedings against Shri A.M.Shankar, the then
Assistant Execﬁtive Engineer(E), Yelanduru Sub-division, CHSC,
Mysore, [hereinafter referred to as Delinquent Board Official,

for short as “DBQ’] and entrusted the departmental inquiry

to this Institution.




2. This Institution by Nomination Order No. UPLOK-
2/DE/111/2016 dated 21.04.2016 nominated Additional
Registrar of Enquiries-11, Karnataka Lokayukta, Bengaluru,
as the Inquiry Officer. to frame charges and to conduct
departinen’cal inquiry against DBO for the alleged charge of

misconduct, said to have been committed by him.

3. The DBO - Shri A.M.Shankar, the then Assistant Executive
Engineer(E), Yelanduru Sub-division, CESC, Mysore, was tried
for the following charges :-
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4.  The Inquiry Officer (Additional Registrar of Enquiriés—
11) on proper appreciation of oral and documentary evidence
has held that, the above charge against the DBO Shri
A.M.Shankar, the then Assistant Executive Engineer(E), Yelanduru

Sub-division, CESC, Mysore, 1is‘ proved’,

5. On re-consideration of report of inquiry and all other
materials on record, I do not find any reason to interfere with
the findings recorded by the Inquiry Officer. Therefore, it is
hereby recommended to the Government to accept the report of

Incjﬁiry Officer.

6.  As per the First Oral Statement of DBO furnished by the
Enquiry Officer, DBO Shri A M.Shankar, is due to retire {rom

service on 30-11-2028.

7. Having regard to the nature of charge (demand and
acceptance of bribe) ‘proved” against the DBO - Shri A.M.Shankar,

the then Assistant Executive Engineer(E), Yelanduru Sub-division,

CESC, Mysore, and considering the totality of circumstances, it is

Page 3 of 4




hereby recommended to the Government to impose penalty of

‘compulsory retirement on DBO Sri A.M.Shankar.’

8. Action) taken in the matter shall be intimated to this

Authority. -

Connected records. are enclosed herewith.

Eolia.6.0.0
(JUSTICE B.S.PATIL)
Upalokayukta,
State of Karnataka.

BS*
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